
 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to 
be sent via secure methods.

 
 
 
 
A Meeting to consider an INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE 
MEMBER DECISION will be held in LGF3 - Civic Offices, 
Shute End, Wokingham RG40 1BN on TUESDAY 19 
MARCH 2024 AT 11.00 AM 
 
 
 

 
Susan Parsonage 
Chief Executive 
Published on 8 March 2024 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting or participate in the 
meeting virtually, in accordance with the Council’s Constitution. If you wish to 
participate either in person or virtually via Microsoft Teams, please contact 
Democratic Services: Democratic.services@wokingham.gov.uk  
The meeting can also be watched live using the following link: 
https://www.youtube.com/live/f5daSKWcTcU?feature=shared 
 
This meeting may be filmed for inclusion on the Council’s website. Please 
note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog from this meeting.  The 
use of these images or recordings is not under the Council’s control.

Public Document Pack

mailto:Democratic.services@wokingham.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/live/f5daSKWcTcU?feature=shared
https://www.youtube.com/live/f5daSKWcTcU?feature=shared


 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to 
be sent via secure methods.

 
 

Our Vision 
 

A great place to live, learn, work and grow and a great place to do business 
 

 
Enriching Lives 

• Champion outstanding education and enable our children and young people to achieve their full 
potential, regardless of their background.  

• Support our residents to lead happy, healthy lives and provide access to good leisure facilities to 
complement an active lifestyle.  

• Engage and involve our communities through arts and culture and create a sense of identity which 
people feel part of.  

• Support growth in our local economy and help to build business. 
Safe, Strong, Communities 

• Protect and safeguard our children, young and vulnerable people. 
• Offer quality care and support, at the right time, to prevent the need for long term care.  
• Nurture communities and help them to thrive. 
• Ensure our borough and communities remain safe for all.  

A Clean and Green Borough 
• Do all we can to become carbon neutral and sustainable for the future.  
• Protect our borough, keep it clean and enhance our green areas. 
• Reduce our waste, improve biodiversity and increase recycling. 
• Connect our parks and open spaces with green cycleways.  

Right Homes, Right Places 
• Offer quality, affordable, sustainable homes fit for the future.  
• Build our fair share of housing with the right infrastructure to support and enable our borough to 

grow.  
• Protect our unique places and preserve our natural environment.  
• Help with your housing needs and support people to live independently in their own homes.  

Keeping the Borough Moving 
• Maintain and improve our roads, footpaths and cycleways.  
• Tackle traffic congestion, minimise delays and disruptions.  
• Enable safe and sustainable travel around the borough with good transport infrastructure. 
• Promote healthy alternative travel options and support our partners to offer affordable, accessible 

public transport with good network links.  
Changing the Way We Work for You 

• Be relentlessly customer focussed. 
• Work with our partners to provide efficient, effective, joined up services which are focussed around 

you.  
• Communicate better with you, owning issues, updating on progress and responding appropriately 

as well as promoting what is happening in our Borough.  
• Drive innovative digital ways of working that will connect our communities, businesses and 

customers to our services in a way that suits their needs.  
 



 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to 
be sent via secure methods.

For consideration by 
 
Stephen Conway, Leader of the Council and Executive Member for Housing 
 
Officers Present 
Liam Oliff, Democratic and Electoral Services Specialist 
Samuel Watt, Senior Strategy Officer - Strategic Housing 
 
 

IMD NO. WARD SUBJECT  
    
IMD 2024/05 All Wards CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO 'REFORMS 

TO SOCIAL HOUSING ALLOCATIONS' 
 

5 - 38 

 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
Liam Oliff Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist   
Email liam.oliff@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION 
REFERENCE IMD: 2024/05 

 
TITLE Consultation Response to 'Reforms to Social 

Housing Allocations' 
  
DECISION TO BE MADE BY Leader of the Council and Executive Member for 

Housing - Stephen Conway 
  
DATE, 
MEETING ROOM and TIME 

19 March 2024 
LGF3, 11:00, Tuesday 19th March 2024. 

  
WARD (All Wards); 
  
DIRECTOR / KEY OFFICER Director, Place and Growth - Giorgio Framalicco 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT (Inc Strategic Outcomes) 
 
To approve Wokingham Borough Council and Loddon Homes’ response to the 
Government’s consultation titled ‘Consultation on reforms to social housing allocations’, 
for submission by 26th March 2024. This consultation seeks feedback from local 
authorities regarding the implications on proposed measures to change social housing 
allocations.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Executive Member for Housing and Partnerships authorises Wokingham 
Borough Council and Loddon Homes’ to respond to this consultation as set out in 
Enclosure I of this report.  
 
SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
This report summarises the response which Wokingham Borough Council intends to 
submit to central Government through this consultation. This response focuses on the 
predicted impacts that the proposed changes to secondary legislation will have on 
Council resourcing, capacity, and social housing stock. Much of the Council’s response 
is limited by the need for more information to be provided prior to taking a view on these 
issues. This is further detailed in our proposed consultation responses in Enclosure I. 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item IMD5



 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

Background 
 
This consultation is released in the context of a historic trend of tightening social 
housing allocations, with government’s view that this scarce resource is reserved for 
only for those who need it most. Previously, social housing allocations have been 
tightened by excluding citizens from the European Economic Area who are not working 
and giving local people priority on social housing waiting lists and by ending open 
waiting lists under the coalition government from 2010.  
 
Nationally, there are 1.3 million people on social housing waiting lists with over 267,000 
new tenancies agreed each year. Wokingham currently has 1,300 applicants on the 
Housing Register, with 62 in Band 1, 139 in Band 2 and 384 in Band 3. The government 
has invested £11.5 billion in the Affordable Homes Programme but demand still 
outstrips supply, especially when factoring losses to Right to Buy. The social housing 
sector responded saying 90% of social housing already goes to UK nationals and 
proposals could force more people into homelessness, arguing more social housing is 
the solution, not tighter restrictions on allocations.  
 
The policy proposals set out in the consultation apply to the Social Rented Sector (SRS) 
in England. This includes 4 million households and 1,606 registered providers of social 
housing, of which 221 are local authorities and 1,385 private registered providers 
(PRPs). This consultation will inform secondary legislation that is proposed to be made 
under Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996. Under this, the Secretary of State may prescribe 
classes of persons who are eligible or ineligible for an allocation of social housing in 
England and may also prescribe qualification criteria that local housing authorities use 
to allocate social housing. The consultation will also inform a new eviction ground under 
the Housing Acts 1985 and 1988. 
 
Business Case (including Analysis of Issues) 
 
The Council intends to submit a response as it is important to have our views 
considered on proposed legislative changes that will directly impact how the Council’s 
housing allocations operate. This consultation has not provided sufficient information on 
how these changes are expected to be implemented. Consequently, much of our 
response requests further information to be provided to permit comment on the range of 
proposals introduced. The government have also requested information on the 
Council’s existing processes for each of the matters proposed. The consultation’s 
proposals have been summarised below:  
 
1. UK connection test – a person must demonstrate their connection to the UK before 
they can be allocated social housing. To note, nationally, 90% of lead tenants in social 
housing are UK nationals and 90% of new lettings for social housing go to UK nationals.  
 
This can be achieved by:  
 

➢ a British citizen. 
➢ an Irish citizen. 
➢ a Commonwealth citizen with a right of abode. 
➢ an EEA or Swiss citizen with equal treatment rights, or 
➢ by being a lawful resident in the UK for ten years. 

 

Page 6



 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

2. Local connection test – a person must demonstrate a connection to a local area 
for at least 2 years before they can be allocated social housing. To note, 
Wokingham Borough Council already requires a 5 year local connection test. 
There would be exemptions for: 
 
➢ Armed forces members and veterans,  
➢ Care leavers,  
➢ Domestic abuse victims  
➢ Refugees arriving via resettlement schemes 

 
3. Income test – setting thresholds for applicants and those on a waiting list to 

qualify for social housing. To note Wokingham has a household income threshold 
for getting onto housing register of an income less than £40k for a studio/1 bed 
need or less than £60k for a 2 bed need or more.   

4. Anti-social behaviour test – people who have unspent convictions for certain 
criminal anti-social behaviour, as well as certain civil sanctions, will be 
disqualified from social housing for a defined period.  

5. Terrorism test – terrorist offenders with unspent convictions will not qualify for 
social housing unless excluding them would increase the risk to public safety.  

6. Grounds for eviction (anti-social behaviour and terrorist offences) – implementing 
a ‘three strikes and you’re out’ policy for repeat offenders of anti-social behaviour 
and creating a new ground for eviction for terrorist offences.  

7. Fraudulent declaration test - mandating a period of disqualification for those who 
knowingly or recklessly make false statements when applying for social housing.  

8. Applicants on a waiting list – applying the new eligibility and qualification tests not 
only to new applicants but also to those currently on a social housing waiting list.  

 
The government would seek to bring these changes in Spring/Summer 2024 through 
secondary legislation.  
 
Comment is required on whether the Council agrees or disagrees with each of these 
proposals including information on what processes and policies the Council already 
uses to address each of the above proposals. Throughout the proposed consultation 
responses, we have outlined the Council’s current approach including detailing our 
existing local connection test, anti-social behaviour checks, grounds for eviction and 
fraudulent declaration tests. When requested to comment on our view on each of the 
proposals, we have responded with a neutral response and requested further 
information on each of the proposals prior to comment. A question that affects each 
proposal is that more detail is needed on how local authorities are expected to house 
those who are disqualified from social housing but who we have a statutory duty to 
house. Without further clarity from government on these proposed changes, there is 
concern that temporary accommodation costs will increase. This is because more 
people will be ineligible for social housing but local authorities will still have a duty to 
accommodate. In addition, more detail is needed on what will qualify as ASB that would 
contribute as a strike under the ‘three strikes’ policy change. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 7



 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
The Council faces unprecedented financial pressures as a result of; the longer term 
impact of the COVID-19 crisis, Brexit, the war in Ukraine and the general economic 
climate of rising prices and the increasing cost of debt. It is therefore imperative 
that Council resources are optimised and are focused on the vulnerable and on its 
highest priorities. 
 
 How much will it 

Cost/ (Save) 
Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

N/A (see below) N/A N/A 

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

N/A N/A N/A 

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

N/A N/A N/A 

 
Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision 
The purpose of submitting a consultation response is to put forward to Government the 
views of Wokingham Borough Council on our views of the expected outcomes of the 
various options to changes of this legislation as detailed in Enclosure I of this report. 
Any financial implications of the recommendation are entirely dependent on which 
option the government chooses to implement. There is no certainty that the views and 
recommendations of the Council will be reflected in the final decisions. It is impossible 
to attach a financial value to any benefit or negative incurred through this consultation 
response as the council responding to this consultation does not have any direct 
financial implications.  
 
More clarity on the policy changes from government is required to in order to estimate 
the financial impacts that these proposed changes would have to the Council. 

 
Cross-Council Implications (how does this decision impact on other Council services, 
including property and priorities?) 
The consultation responses respond to the proposed changes to the social housing 
allocations policy which, if implemented, would have cross-council implications. 
However, there is no guarantee that the government will consider the views submitted in 
Enclosure I of this report so there is no impact of the Council submitting these 
responses.  
 
If the changes become law, the Council’s Housing and Environmental Health teams will 
be impacted as they will require a change of policy in allocations and the way that anti-
social behaviour is monitored in relation to housing. 

 
Public Sector Equality Duty 
As part of this decision, due regard has been taken to the Public Sector Equality Duty. 
The equalities implications of the recommendation were discussed, and an Initial 
Equality Impact Assessment (Stage 1) document has been completed accordingly as 
per Enclosure 2. A Stage 2 assessment is not required as no negative impacts on 
groups have been identified. 

 
SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
Director – Resources and Assets No comment. 

Page 8



 

 
Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

Monitoring Officer Ensure the ‘recommendation’ section 
requests ‘approval’ of the submission of 
the consultation responses. 

Leader of the Council No comment.  
  

 
For Highways use only 

If your item is not about a highways matter you do not need to complete the Town and Parish Council 
information or the Local Ward Member information 

Town and Parish Councils 
  
  
  
Local Ward Members 
  
  
  
  
  
  

 
Reasons for considering the report in Part 2 
N/A 

 
List of Background Papers 
Enclosure I – Proposed Consultation Responses 
Enclosure II – Stage 1 Equality and Impacts Assessment 

 
Contact  Samuel Watt Service  Place Commissioning 
Telephone No 07786855374 Email  samuel.watt@wokingham.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form: the initial impact assessment  

1. Process and guidance  
 
The purpose of an EqIA is to make sure that the council is meeting the needs of all our residents by ensuring we consider 
how different groups of people may be affected by or experience a proposal in different ways.  EqIAs help us to meet our 
Public Sector Equality Duty and where applicable the Armed Forces Duty 
 
The council has a two stage EqIA process:  

• Stage 1 - the initial impact assessment  
• Stage 2 - the full impact assessment.  

 
This form is for use at Stage 1 of the process. This must be completed when undertaking a project, policy change, or 
service change. It can form part of a business case for change and must be completed and attached to a Project Initiation 
Document.  The findings of the initial impact assessment will determine whether a full impact assessment is needed.   
 
Guidance and tools for council officers can be accessed on the council’s Tackling Inequality Together intranet pages.  
  
Date started: 12.02.2024  

Completed by: Samuel Watt  

Service:  Economy and Housing  

Project or policy EqIA relates to: Consultation on Changes to 
Social Housing Allocations 

 

Date EqIA discussed at service 
team meeting: 

13.02.2024  

P
age 11

https://www.equalityhumanrights.com/en/advice-and-guidance/public-sector-equality-duty
https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/armed-forces-act-2021-background-implications-councils-and
https://wokingham.sharepoint.com/Services/Pages/Tackling-inequality-together.aspx


 

2 

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Conclusion (is a full assessment 
needed?): 

No  

Signed off by (AD): Frances Haywood (deputising for 
Rhian Hayes)  

Sign off date: 29.02.2024  

2. Summary of the policy, project, or service  
 
This section should be used to summarise the project, policy, or service change (the proposal).   
 

What is the purpose of the proposal, what are the aims and expected outcomes, and how does it relate to service plans 
and the corporate plan? 
To agree on Wokingham Borough Council’s response to the Government’s consultation on proposed changes to social housing allocations. 
These proposals have been extracted below:  
 

1. UK connection test – a person must demonstrate their connection to the UK before they can be allocated social housing.  
2. Local connection test – a person must demonstrate a connection to a local area for at least 2 years before they can be allocated social housing.  
3. Income test – setting thresholds for applicants and those on a waiting list to qualify for social housing.  
4. Anti-social behaviour test – people who have unspent convictions for certain criminal anti-social behaviour, as well as certain civil sanctions, will be 

disqualified from social housing for a defined period.  
5. Terrorism test – terrorist offenders with unspent convictions will not qualify for social housing unless excluding them would increase the risk to 

public safety.  
6. Grounds for eviction (anti-social behaviour and terrorist offences) – implementing a ‘three strikes and you’re out’ policy for repeat offenders of 

anti-social behaviour, and creating a new ground for eviction for terrorist offences.  
7. Fraudulent declaration test - mandating a period of disqualification for those who knowingly or recklessly make false statements when applying for 

social housing.  
8. Applicants on a waiting list – applying the new eligibility and qualification tests not only to new applicants but also to those currently on a social 

housing waiting list.  
 

The government would seek to bring these changes in Spring/Summer 2024 through secondary legislation.  

P
age 12



 

3 

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

 

 

How will the proposal be delivered, what governance arrangements are in place and who are the key internal 
stakeholders?  
The proposal consists of a consultation response, so delivery of this will consist of submitting the response through the online consultation 
form, once the submission has been agreed through the Individual Executive Member Decision taken by the Executive Member for Housing 
and Partnerships. 

 

Who will be affected by the proposal? Think about who it is aimed at and who will deliver it.   

 
The decision to submit our consultation response will have no impact on those with protected characteristics as there is no guarantee that our 
consultation response will influence government policy. However, in Section 3 we have detailed how we expect protected groups to be 
affected if the proposed policy changes were to be implemented.  
 

3. Data & Protected Characteristics 
 
This section should be used to set out what data you have gathered to support the initial impact assessment.  
 
The table below sets out the equality groups that need to be considered in the impact assessment. These comprise the 
nine protected characteristics set out in the Equality Act 2010 and other priority areas defined by the council.  
 

P
age 13



 

4 

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Age Armed Forces Communities Care Experienced People Disability 

Gender Reassignment Marriage and Civil Partnership Pregnancy/Maternity Religious belief 

Race Sex Sexual Orientation Socio-economic disadvantage 

 
The Armed Forces Act 2021 requires consideration of the impact on Armed Forces Communities when exercising certain 
housing, education or healthcare functions (excluding social care). Further guidance can be found here.  
 

What data and information will be used to help assess the impact of the proposal on different groups of people? A list 
of useful resources is available for officers on the Council’s Tackling Inequality Together intranet pages.  
The information used to understand the impact of the proposal on different groups is the data and experiences provided by WBC officers, in 
relation to providing social housing allocations in the Borough. This is the same intelligence which informed the proposal itself. Additionally, 
more general, widely publicised information relating to the impacts of implementing these proposed changes to social housing allocations, in 
terms of the groups which statistically it would affect the most, has also been used to help assess the proposal’s impact. 
 
Section 4 below has been completed on the basis that, we the information we have available currently, the policy changes will be 
implemented as described. As part of our consultation response, we have requested more information on a number of points which would 
change our expectation of how those with protected characteristics would be impacted. The proposals state that there would be exemptions 
for armed forces members and veterans, care leavers, domestic abuse victims and refugees arriving via resettlement schemes. 

4. Assessing & Scoring Impact 
 
This section should be used to assess the likely impact on each equality group, consider how significant any impacts could 
be and explain how the data gathered supports the conclusions made.  
 
Scoring impact for equality groups 

P
age 14

https://www.local.gov.uk/parliament/briefings-and-responses/armed-forces-act-2021-background-implications-councils-and#:~:text=(a)%20the%20unique,the%20armed%20forces.
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2022/9780348237801/pdfs/ukdsiod_9780348237801_en.pdf


 

5 

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Positive impact The proposal promotes equality of opportunity by meeting needs or addressing existing barriers 
to participation and/or promotes good community relations 

Neutral or no impact The proposal has no impact or no disproportionate impact. 

Low negative The proposal is likely to negatively impact a small number of people, be of short duration and can 
easily be resolved.  

High negative The proposal is likely to have a significant negative impact on many people or a severe impact on 
a smaller number of people.  

 
Referring to the Scoring table above, please give an impact score for each group, explain what the likely impact will be, 
and briefly set out how the data supports this conclusion.   
 
Equality group  Impact score Impact and supporting data  

Age 
Neutral/no 
impact 

There is no suggestion that these proposed policy changes would have any impact on 
this protected characteristic. 

Disability 

High negative 
impact 

Qualitative data from WBC officers suggests that there are sometimes links between 
ASB and mental health. In turn, if the proposal for a ‘3 strikes and you’re out’ policy 
change was implemented we would expect this disproportionately impact those with 
mental health challenges and the Council’s ability to accommodate them.   

Gender reassignment  Neutral/no 
impact 

There is no suggestion that these proposed policy changes would have any impact on 
this protected characteristic. 

Marriage and Civil Partnership  Neutral/no 
impact 

There is no suggestion that these proposed policy changes would have any impact on 
this protected characteristic. 

Pregnancy/Maternity 
Neutral/no 
impact 

There is no suggestion that these proposed policy changes would have any impact on 
this protected characteristic. 

Religious belief 
High Negative 
impact 

The proposal states that to qualify for social housing, applicants must pass a 10 year 
UK connection test and a 2 year local connection test. Wokingham’s local connection 

P
age 15



 

6 

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

test is 5 years so this will have no impact. However, some applicants would qualify 
for the 5 year local connection test but not the 10 year national test.  
 
This protected group is more likely to be impacted, especially those who don’t have 
a national connection to the UK. This means that those without a 10 year connection 
will be ineligible for social housing if the changes become law. 

Race 

High Negative 
impact 

As of 2023, Wokingham’s ethnic demographics were proportioned as: 87.1% born in 
Europe, 3.2% of people born in Africa, 8% born in the Middle East and Asia, 1.2% 
from the Americas and the Caribbean and 0.4% from Antarctica and Oceania. The 
12.9% of people that weren’t born in Europe, including a significant portion of those 
born in Europe but without a 10 year connection to the UK, would be ineligible for 
social housing if these changes were brought into effect.  
 
The proposal states that to qualify for social housing, applicants must pass a 10 year 
UK connection test and a 2 year local connection test. Wokingham’s local connection 
test is 5 years so this will have no impact. However, some applicants would qualify 
for the 5 year local connection test but not the 10 year national test.  
 
This protected group is more likely to be impacted, especially those who don’t have 
a national connection to the UK. This means that those without a 10 year connection 
will be ineligible for social housing if the changes become law. 

Sex 
Neutral/no 
impact 

There is no suggestion that these proposed policy changes would have any impact on 
this protected characteristic. 

Sexual Orientation 
Neutral/no 
impact 

There is no suggestion that these proposed policy changes would have any impact on 
this protected characteristic. 

Socio-economic disadvantage  

High Negative 
impact  

Qualitative data from our housing officers suggest that people with a socio-economic 
disadvantage have a greater likelihood of having been involved with Anti-Social 
behaviour. If implemented, this proposal would mean that residents with unspent 
convictions for certain criminal Anti-Social behaviour and other civil sanctions will be 
disqualified from social housing for a defined period. 
 

P
age 16



 

7 

Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t require to be sent via secure methods.

Armed Forces Communities Neutral/no 
impact 

There is no suggestion that these proposed policy changes would have any impact on 
this protected characteristic. 

Care Experienced People 

High Negative 
impact 

Qualitative data from our young people’s housing officers suggest that Care 
Experienced People have a greater likelihood of having been involved with Anti-
Social behaviour. If implemented, this proposal would mean that residents with 
unspent convictions for certain criminal Anti-Social behaviour and other civil 
sanctions will be disqualified from social housing for a defined period.  

 

5. Conclusion and next steps.  
 
Based on your findings from your initial impact assessment, you must complete a full impact assessment if you have 
identified any groups as having a low or high negative impact.  
 
If no impact, or a positive impact has been identified, you do not need to complete a full assessment. However, you must 
include reference to the initial assessment in any associated reports, and it must receive formal approval from the 
Assistant Director responsible for the project, policy, or service change.  
 

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

Consultation on reforms to Social Housing Allocations 
This consultation seeks views on the following issues: 

1. The introduction of a United Kingdom (UK) connection test, to ensure that it is those with the 
closest connection to the UK who are eligible for a social home; 

2. Mandating the following tests: local connection test, income test, false statement test, and tests 
for anti-social behaviour and terrorism offences; 

3. The introduction of a new ground for eviction for those who are convicted of terrorism offences, 
and implementation of a ‘three strikes and you’re out’ policy for anti-social behaviour. 

The tests to determine who qualifies for social housing would be applied to new applicants and 
those currently on a waiting list. This means that those currently living in social housing will not be 
subject to these new tests. Existing tenants will however be subject to eviction where relevant. 

 

UK Connection test 
1. What evidence does your local housing authority currently collect as proof of eligibility? 

☒ Passport 

☐ Visa letter 

☐ Proof of access to benefits   

☐ Home Office data on Visas 

☒ Other  

 

 

2. Do you agree that an individual should have to demonstrate a connection to the UK for ten years 
before qualifying for social housing (if they do not meet the test otherwise or are exempt)? 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

☒ Don't know   

 

Wokingham Borough Council has a local connection test requiring a minimum of 5 years local connection to 
the Borough. There is not a separate test for a UK connection, however, a passport is required to be 
submitted as part of the application. 

The documents required to be assessed for the local connection test are included in the relevant question 
within this consultation response. 

Page 19



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

3. Do you think there should be any further exemptions to the UK connection test, for example for 
care leavers? 

☒ Yes 

☐ No 

Insufficient information has been provided on how this policy change would be implemented. 
In order to comment further on this proposal, more information is required on the specific 
implications of introducing a 10 year UK connection test. 

This includes understanding how those that local authorities owe a homelessness duty to, but 
do not pass the UK connection test, will be accommodated. Currently, Wokingham Borough 
Council has a 5 year local connection test whereby applicants need to prove they have lived or 
worked in the Borough for at least 5 years. If a 10 year UK connection test was implemented 
then a number of applicants currently on our housing register would not be eligible for social 
housing. This is because they could meet the existing 5 year local connection test, but not the 
10 year UK connection test. Data is not held regarding the number of applicants this would 
effect. However, there is a question as to where these applicants are housed if not eligible for 
social housing but identified as having a housing need. Therefore, without clarity on this issue, 
we are unable to comment on this proposal. 

Page 20



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

 

 

 

 

   

4. How long would it take your local housing authority to implement a new UK connection test at 
eligibility stage? 
 
Select timeframe 

☐ Less than 1 month 

☐ 1-3 months 

☐ 3-6 months 

☒ More than 6 months 

☐ More than 12 months  

It is acknowledged that eligibility for meeting the 10 year UK connection test extends to: 

(a) that they are a British citizen, Irish citizen, Commonwealth citizen with a right of abode, or 
EEA or Swiss citizen with equal treatment rights; 
(b) that they have recourse to public funds and have been lawfully resident in the UK for a 
continuous period of ten years; or 
(c) that they have arrived in the UK on a safe and legal resettlement or relocation scheme (as 
specified below).

Additionally, we would want to ensure that care leavers and unaccompanied asylum seeking 
children care leavers would be exempt from this test. Without exempting these groups, local 
authorities will not be able to fulfil their duty as Corporate Parents as these residents would be 
ineligible for social housing. Furthermore, any applicant who is homeless and the Council has 
accepted the section 189B ‘relief of homelessness’ duty or the main section 193(2) housing 
duty under the Housing Act 1996 should be considered exempted or the process for how these 
applicants will be housed made clear as part of the new legislation. 

In addition, we would suggest that exemptions for survivors of domestic abuse and key-
workers are considered. Councils have a duty to house people who have experienced or are at 
risk of domestic abuse and this proposal would make it more challenging to house this group 
sensitively and in properties in suitable locations. Key-workers are vital to the local economy 
including the service and care industries as well as ensuring our town centres can thrive. 
Wokingham Council is proposing to remove the requirement for our 5 year local connection 
test for key-workers to enable more people to fulfil meaningful jobs that contribute to our 
economy. Therefore, we suggest that exemptions for these groups are considered in addition 
to the eligibility list proposed. 

Page 21



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ Don’t know 

 

5. Do you foresee any challenges delivering this change to eligibility in your local housing authority’s 
social housing allocation system? Please detail why/why not. 

☒ Yes 

☐ No 

☐ Don't know   

 

6. Please indicate the number of new lettings in your local housing authority area (including 
households on the waiting list) that you believe would become ineligible by this policy. Please also 
indicate the size of your waiting list. 

Number of new lettings impacted:  

 
Size of waiting list:  

 

 

As detailed in the answer to question 2, Wokingham Council currently operate a 5 year local 
connection test. Some applicants who would qualify for social housing in Wokingham under 
the local test would become ineligible for social housing under the 10 year UK connection test. 
Since it is proposed that this test would be applied to applicants on the housing register, it will 
be a challenging and resource intensive exercise to re-assess all applicants against the new 
criteria. 

Additionally, as we have a duty to house those who present as homeless and qualify as an 
eligible person under Part 6 of the Housing Act (1996). If, through applying the 10 year UK 
national test to existing applicants on the register, they then present to us with a homelessness 
duty, we will have a legal duty to house them. This will have to be through temporary 
accommodation of which the Council’s stock is at capacity and having to spend significant 
resources on sourcing expensive private temporary and emergency accommodation. 

Overall, there is concern that it will be challenging to identify those already on the housing 
register that will become ineligible. Whilst more information is required on how local 
authorities are expected to house those who become ineligible through this policy change but 
then present with a housing need. 

Data is not held on applicant’s eligibility for a 10 year UK connection test

1324 as of 22.02.2024. 

Page 22



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

Local connection test 

Existing systems 
7. If you currently use a local connection test for social housing, what definition of residence do you 
currently use as the measure for local connection? 

☐ Section 199 of the Housing Act 1996 

☐ Proof of residence only  

☒Other, please detail 

☐ Not applicable, there is no local connection test 

 

8. If you currently use a local connection test for social housing, please indicate any groups that are 
currently exempted from the test: 

☒ Care Leavers 

☒ Those requiring specialist medical care 

☒ UK armed forces and veterans 

• Official photo identification for all household members, for example a passport or driving

licence. In exceptional circumstances, the Council may accept a full birth certificate as proof

of identity if no other form can be provided.

• Evidence of immigration status in the UK.

• Proof of regular forces service and/or discharge paperwork including service number,

veterans ID card, discharge letter, evidence of any monetary settlement (where applicable),

termination pay, and details of forces pension income and lump sum (if any) as applicable.

• Proof of current tenure.

• Proof of income and capital assets.

• Proof of residence and local connection e.g. council tax bills.

• Health and wellbeing documentation e.g. support plans. Any identified support or risks will

be shared with providers at nomination.

• Any notice terminating a right to occupy e.g. notice seeking possession, notice to quit,

certificate of cessation of right to occupy service quarters.

Page 23



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☒ Domestic abuse victims 

☒ Named 'resettlement' or relocation schemes  

☒ Other 

 

☐ Don’t know 

☐ Not applicable, there is no existing local connection test 

Future system 
9. Do you agree that an individual should have to demonstrate a local connection with an area for 
two years before qualifying for social housing (unless exempt)? 

☒ Yes 

☐ No, please detail length of test 

☐ Don’t know 

1) An applicant is homeless and the Council has accepted the section 189B ‘relief of 
homelessness’ duty or the main section 193(2) housing duty under the Housing Act 1996, and 
they are not intending to refer the applicant to another local authority under the 
homelessness local connection rules. 

2) Applicants entitled to a reasonable preference
3) Where there are significant and special circumstances requiring a move into Wokingham 

Borough by the applicant or a member of their household. 
4) Applicants who are leaving an institution such as a prison, secure unit, hospital, rehabilitation 

centre, refuge, hostel or supported accommodation scheme that is not in Wokingham 
Borough and the applicant was resident in Wokingham Borough for 3 out of the last 5 years 
immediately before they were accommodated in that institution and the Council has retained 
responsibility for the applicant under community care legislation. 

5) The Council will consider any application from a gypsy or traveller household where the 
applicant may not meet the continuous period of residence rule because the period may 
have been broken by travelling. 

6) Care Leavers below the age of 25 years who are, or were, owed a duty under section 23C of 
the Children Act 1989 by the Council and have been looked after in accommodation outside 
of Wokingham Borough. This will include care leavers who are still receiving after care 
support from Children’s Service until they are 25, and some care leavers who are in full-time 
education who wish to move back to Wokingham Borough on completion of their education. 

7) Applicants who satisfy the Allocation of Housing (Qualification Criteria for Armed Forces) 
(England) Regulations 2012. 

8) Spouses and civil partners of serving members who are required to leave accommodation 
provided by the Ministry of Defence following a breakdown in their relationship with their 
service spouse or partner. 

9) Applicants who satisfy the right to move criteria.

Page 24



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

10. The government intends to use the same definition of local connection as in section 199 of the 
Housing Act 1996. This definition would mean that a person has a local connection: 

• because they are, or in the past were, normally resident there, and that residence is or 
was of their own choice; 

• because they are employed there; 
• because of family associations; or 
• because of special circumstances. 

Do you agree that definition should be used? 

☒ Yes 

☐ No, residency only 

☐ No, other (please specify) 

☐ Don’t know 

Exemptions from test 
11. The government proposes to exempt care leavers from the local connection test for social 
housing up to the age of 25 to align with broader Corporate Parenting Principles, which sets out the 
responsibilities of local authorities towards children and young people in care. Do you agree? 

☒ Yes 

☐ No, please explain why 

☐ Don’t know 

12. Do you think there should be any further exemptions to the local connection test? 

☒ Yes, please propose additional groups 

 

☐ No, please explain why 

13. How long would it take your local housing authority to implement a new local connection test? 

☒ The test is already in place 

☐ Less than 1 month 

As per our response to question 8 of this consultation we would expect to see these same 
exemptions that our Allocations Policy already permits to continue to be exempted through 
any national policy change. 

Page 25

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/applying-corporate-parenting-principles-to-looked-after-children-and-care-leavers


 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ 1-3 months 

☐ 3-6 months 

☐ More than 6 months 

☐ More than 12 months  

14. Noting the proposed exemptions, please indicate the number of new lettings in the local housing 
authority area that you believe would become ineligible by this policy. 

Number of new lettings impacted:  

Size of waiting list: 

 

Income test 

Current system 
15. Does your local housing authority currently perform an income check for social housing 
applicants? If so, please provide more details on the test including: the definition of income; 
the income threshold for the test; whether capital assets are included in the assessment; 
the evidence collected to determine household income; income assessment periods; and 
any exemptions. 

☒ Yes 

☐ No, please detail length of test 

☐ Don’t know 

N/A as the introduction of a 2 year local connection test would have no impact on new lettings given 
we already have a 5 year local connection test in place. 

1324 as of 22.02.2024. 

Page 26



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

If so, please provide more details on the test including: the definition of income; the income 
threshold for the test; what capital assets are included in the assessment; the evidence 
collected to determine household income; income assessment periods; and any exemptions 

 

16. Should the same threshold for the income test apply across England or should it vary? 

☐ National threshold 

☐ A threshold for London and another for the rest of the country 

☒ Vary by locality - set by central government 

☐  Vary by locality - set by local housing authority  

☐ Reflect a different geography (please specify) 

☐ Don't know  

 

17. Should income data be assessed at household or individual level? If household, whose 
income data should be assessed? 

Wokingham Council has an income cap of £30,000 for key-workers which rises with CPI each year 
from 2022. There is also an income assessment which, if met, will place applicants in Band 5 of our 
housing register with a reduced preference due to them being assessed as having sufficient financial 
resources. This income test assessed on household income is as below: 

• Studio/one bedroom need – income of £40,000 per annum or more, capital of £16,000 or more.
• Two bedroom need and above – income of £60,000 per annum or more, capital of £16,000 or more.

Applicants with total annual incomes or capital above these thresholds are deemed to have sufficient 
financial resources to pay a market rent or buy a home in the borough. Applicants who are likely to 
inherit within the next six months will be placed into Band 5 until sufficient evidence has been 
provided to confirm the inheritance due does not exceed the above thresholds. 'Sufficient financial 
resources' includes any assets or investments even if they are not immediately available to the 
applicant, such as any residential or non-residential property that they own or part own anywhere in 
the UK or abroad. Any lump sum received as compensation for an injury or disability will be 
disregarded, for example by a member of the regular forces.

Applicants may be considered as an exception if: 

a) They own or part own a freehold or long leasehold interest in accommodation; 
b) They are over state pension age or have a substantial disability; and their current home is not 
suitable for their specific needs and cannot be adapted
c) They have insufficient financial resources to buy accommodation that meets their particular 
housing needs in the private market despite owning a property or having income or savings above 
the ‘sufficient resources’ thresholds set out in this policy.

Page 27



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ Whoever is on the tenancy agreement 

☐ Lead tenant on the tenancy agreement 

☒ Household, everyone in the household 

☐  Household, the two highest earners in the household  

☐ Household, the single highest earner in the household 

☐ Household, other  

☐ Individual 

☐ Other 

☐ Don't know 

 

18. Assuming household income is based on the two highest earners working full time, what 
should the income cap be set at? 

☐ Less than £40,000 

☐ £40,000 - £49,999 

☐ £50,000 - £59,999 

☐  £60,000 - £69,999 

☐ £70,000 - or more 

☒ Don't know  

19. Should capital assets be included in the assessment? If yes, what type of capital assets 
should be included, and what threshold should be set? Capital assets could include savings 
in an interest-bearing savings account; savings in a non-interest-bearing current account; 
bonds, stocks and shares; property that the applicant does not live in; and land. 

☒ Yes, please provide more details 

☐ No 

☐ Don’t know 

Page 28



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

 

 

20. Do you agree that households where an individual is in receipt of Universal Credit, 
housing benefit or other legacy benefits (which are being replaced by Universal Credit); 
households who need or live in supported housing; and members and veterans of the UK 
armed forces should be exempt from an income test? 

☐ Yes, all three groups should be exempt 

☐ Yes, and there should be exemptions for other groups. Please detail these.  

☐ No, only some of these groups should be exempt. 

☐  No, only other groups should be exempt 

☒ Don't know 

If yes and there should be exemptions for other groups, please detail these.  

If only some groups should be exempt, please select all those you think should be exempt.  

☐ Individuals in receipt of Universal Credit, housing benefit or other legacy benefits  

☐ Households who need or live in supported housing 

☐ Members or veterans of the UK armed forces 

 

21. How long would it take your local housing authority to implement a new income test at 
qualification stage? 

☐ This test is already in place 

☐ Less than 1 month 

☐ 1-3 months 

☐ 3-6 months 

As per our answer to question 15, our Allocations Policy already details requirements for eligibility for 
social housing based on capital assets. This has been detailed below for reference: 

Studio/one bedroom need – income of £40,000 per annum or more, capital of £16,000 or more.
• Two bedroom need and above – income of £60,000 per annum or more, capital of £16,000 or more.

Sufficient financial resources' includes any assets or investments even if they are not immediately 
available to the applicant, such as any residential or non-residential property that they own or part 
own anywhere in the UK or abroad.

Page 29



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ More than 6 months 

☐ More than 12 months  

☒ Don't know 

22. Do you think there are any circumstances where a minimum income threshold to 
determine who should be allocated a social home is appropriate, for example to incentivise 
being in work? If yes, please detail: 

☐ Yes, please provide more details 

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

 

Anti-social behaviour test 

23. Does your local housing authority undertake any anti-social behaviour or other criminal 
behaviour tests for social housing applicants? If so, please detail what tests are conducted; 
what data sources are used to inform these test (e.g. Police National Computer checks or 
local data sharing); and any groups exempted from the test. 

☒ Yes 

☐ No 

☐ Don’t know 

Wokingham Council does not feel that sufficient information has been provided to make a 
judgement on this statement. Currently, we do not employ a minimum threshold to determine 
who should be allocated a social home. However, we would wish to see more detail on the 
government’s proposals before commenting on this policy change. 

The test that is currently undertaken is a risk assessment that the Housing Needs team discusses 
with the applicant whereby they are given the opportunity to declare whether they have any 
unspent convictions, of which ASB is included. We do not currently have any specific groups that 
are exempted from the test. However, through our Exceptional Circumstances Panel there may 
be occasions when it is deemed the best course of action for the resident and the Council to 
exempt the resident from the above qualification. 

Additionally, spent convictions are not required to be disclosed and will not be taken into 
account in assessing that person’s eligibility to join the register. The assessment will instead 
reflect whether there is evidence of any current or past behaviour, regardless of whether a 
person has been convicted of an offence in the past for that behaviour. The Council will take no 
account of spent convictions but may have regard to the behaviour which comprised the 
offence.

Page 30



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

 

24. Do you agree that a conviction/sanction for anti-social behaviour should result in a 
disqualification period from accessing social housing? If yes, how long should someone be 
disqualified for? 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

If yes, how long should someone be disqualified for?  

If no, please explain your answer: 

25. Should all members of a household be subject to a check for history of anti-social 
behaviour, rather than just the lead tenant? 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

If no, explain why.  

26. The government is considering whether exemptions to the anti-social behaviour test 
should be made for victims of domestic abuse; or those with a condition or disability that 
was a relevant contributing factor to the anti-social behaviour. Are there any additional 
groups that should be considered for an exemption from this test? 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

Whilst we are inclined to disagree with this proposed, we do not feel that adequate information 
on the repercussions of implementing this policy change has been revealed and therefore cannot 
commit to a position on this point. 

More information is requested on what local authorities are expected to accommodate residents 
that are disqualified from social housing due to three instances of ASB as they will be ineligible 
for social housing but will still require housing under homelessness duties. 

Additionally, more information is requested on what constitutes an instance of ASB as this will 
make a significant difference to who would be disqualified from social housing. This is 
particularly relevant for those in supported living placements and whether special consideration 
should be applied in these instances. 

Page 31



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

If yes, please detail these.  

 

27. Please indicate the number of new allocations in your local housing authority area that 
you believe would be affected by the anti-social behaviour test. 

Number affected by the anti-social behaviour test: 

☒ Don’t know 

Terrorism test 
28. Does your local housing authority test for any terrorist offences for social housing 
applicants? If so, please detail what tests are conducted; what data sources are used to 
inform these tests; and any groups exempted from the tests. 

☐ Yes 

☒ No 

☐ Don’t know 

If yes, please detail what tests are conducted; what data sources are used to inform these tests; and 
any groups exempted from the tests.  

 

29. The government is proposing that an unspent conviction, including under the Terrorism 
Acts 2000 and 2006 (such as for membership of a proscribed terrorist organisation) should 
result in a permanent disqualification from accessing social housing, unless doing so would 
increase public safety risks. Do you agree with this proposal? If no, please explain. 

☐ Yes 

More information is requested from government around this policy change as detailed in our 
answer to question 24. Specifically, guidance is requested on what would be deemed as anti-social 
behaviour in the new legislation under the ‘three strikes’ rule. Without this information it is 
difficult to provide a judgement on whether any additional exemptions should be considered.

N/A as this data-set is not currently recorded. Therefore, it is not possible to state the number of new 
lettings affected by anti-social behaviour.  

Page 32



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

 

30. Please indicate the number of new allocations in the local housing authority area that 
you believe would be affected by the terrorism test. 

Number affected by the anti-social behaviour test: 

☒ Don’t know 

 

31. Do you have views on how this proposal might be implemented most effectively? 

6. Grounds for eviction (anti-social behaviour and terrorist 
offences) 

32. The government has committed to exploring a ‘three strikes and you’re out’ eviction 
expectation for all social landlords, meaning three proven instances of anti-social behaviour, 
accompanied by three warnings from a landlord, would result in eviction. How should a 
‘strike’ be defined? 

Whilst we are inclined to agree on this point, we do not feel that there is sufficient information on 
this proposal to make a judgement on whether to support this proposed policy change. More 
information is required on how the government expect local authorities to accommodate those who 
have unspent convictions, as under these proposals they will be permanently disqualified from 
accessing social housing. More information is also required on the definition of ‘public safety risks’ 
and what situations this would be expected to be applied. 

N/A as this data-set is not currently recorded. Therefore, it is not possible to state the number of new 
lettings affected by introducing a terrorism test.   

More information is requested prior to making any recommendation on how this change 
may be implemented. The most significant point that feeds into each of the proposed 
changes is that more guidance is required on what local authorities are expected to do when 
applicants are disqualified from social housing but still have a legal duty to be housed under 
Part 6 of the Housing Act (1996). 

Page 33



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ The powers listed in the Home Office’s Anti-Social Behaviour powers: Statutory guidance 
for frontline professionals, which includes criminal behaviour orders, civil injunctions, 
closure notices/orders, community protection notices, dispersal powers and public 
space protection orders 

☐ It should be left to local housing authorities to decide 

☐ Other 

☒ Don’t know 

If other, please specify.  

 

33. Do you believe that a new ground for eviction should be introduced to ensure that those 
with unspent convictions for terrorism offences be evicted from social housing, unless doing 
so would increase public safety risk? 

☒ Yes 

☐ No 

If yes, how is this best implemented? 

 

If no, please explain why 

 

7. Fraudulent declaration test 

 More info on how it sits with existing legislation. What takes precedence? 

 This answer is caveated by the need for more information on how local authorities are 
expected to house residents with unspent convictions for terrorism offences and what 
would be classed as ‘increasing public safety risk’. 

Additionally, more information on what the government expects local authorities to do in 
the event that there is a statutory duty to house affected residents is requested. 

 

Page 34



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

34. Do you agree that those who provide fraudulent information in social housing 
applications should be prevented from qualifying for a set period, in addition to any 
disqualification period that would have applied had they not made a false declaration? If 
yes, how long should this period be? 

☐ Yes, they should not qualify England-wide 

☐ Yes, they should not qualify in the area they applied to 

☐ No, they should not qualify 

☒ Don’t know 

If yes, how long should the disqualification be? 

☐ 1 year 

☐ 2 years 

☐ 3 years 

☐ 4 years 

☐ 5 years 

 

8. Applicants on a waiting list 
35. Does your local housing authority re-check applicants at the point of allocation to ensure 
that the eligibility and qualification tests are still met? 

☒ Yes 

☐ No 

☐ Don’t know 

36. How often does your local housing authority check whether your waiting list is accurate 
(e.g. by checking whether those on a waiting list are still in the area and still require social 
housing)? 

☒ Once a year 

☐ Between one and two years 

☐ More than two years 

☐ We do not re-check interest until the point of allocation 

Page 35



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ Don't know 

☐ Not applicable (we do not hold a waiting list) 

 

37. Do you check whether applicants to social housing or those on your local housing 
authority waiting list have (a) applied to another local housing authority, (b) are on a 
different local housing authority’s waiting list, or (c) have been allocated housing by another 
local housing authority? If yes, please explain what checks are made, how frequently are 
made and any action that is taken. 

☐ Yes 

☒ No 

☐ Don’t know 

If yes, please explain what checks are made, how frequently they are made and any action 
that is taken.  

 

38. Should there be a limit on how many local housing authorities an applicant can apply to? 
If yes, please indicate the limit. 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

If yes, please indicate a limit (1-10):  

9. Public Sector Equality Duty 
39. Do you expect that any of the policies affecting social housing applicants would have a 
particular impact on those with a particular protected characteristic? If so, please give 
further detail on the relevant policy and its impact. 

☐ Yes 

 

 

Page 36



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

If so, please give further detail on the relevant policy and its impact. 

 

40. Do you expect that any of the policies affecting social housing tenants would have a 
particular impact on those with a particular protected characteristic? If so, please give 
further detail on the relevant policy and its impact. 

☐ Yes 

☐ No 

☒ Don’t know 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 We request that as part of the government’s assessment of these policy changes, a full and 
robust equalities and impacts assessment is carried out. We would be happy to provide 
further comment once more information on these proposals, and how they affect particular 
protected characteristics, has been provided. 

 As per our response to question 39, we request that as part of the government’s 
assessment of these policy changes, a full and robust equalities and impacts assessment is 
carried out. We would be happy to provide further comment once more information on 
these proposals, and how they affect particular protected characteristics, has been 
provided. 

Page 37



 Private: Information that contains a small amount of sensitive data which is essential to communicate with an individual but doesn’t 
require to be sent via secure methods.

 

Page 38


	Agenda
	IMD5 Consultation Response to 'Reforms to Social Housing Allocations'
	Enclosure II – Stage 1 Equality and Impacts Assessment
	Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form: the initial impact assessment
	1.	Process and guidance
	2.	Summary of the policy, project, or service
	3.	Data & Protected Characteristics
	4.	Assessing & Scoring Impact
	5.	Conclusion and next steps.

	Enclosure I – Proposed Consultation Responses
	Existing systems
	Future system
	Exemptions from test
	Current system
	Terrorism test
	6. Grounds for eviction (anti-social behaviour and terrorist offences)
	7. Fraudulent declaration test
	8. Applicants on a waiting list
	9. Public Sector Equality Duty



